




Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOVEMBER 17TH, 2015 PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

FOLLOWED BY PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY MEETING 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17TH, 2015 AT 6:00 P.M. 

The City Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma met in regular session on the above date 
and time in the Council Chamber upstairs at City Hall, 12 North Rowe Street in Pryor Creek, 
Oklahoma.  This meeting was followed immediately by a meeting of the Pryor Public Works 
Authority.  Notice of these meetings was posted on the East bulletin board located outside to the 
South of the entrance doors and the City website at www.pryorcreek.org. Notice was also 
emailed to The Paper and The Times newspapers and emailed to the Council members. 

1. CALL TO ORDER / PRAYER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/ ROLL CALL.
Mayor Jimmy Tramel called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. The Prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance were conducted by Houston Brittain. Roll call was conducted by City Clerk Eva 
Smith. Council members present included:  Roger Willcutt, Cheryl White, Yolanda Thompson, 
Houston Brittain, Greg Rosamond, Randy Chitwood, Ryan Rains and Drew Stott. Council 
members absent: none. 
Department Heads and other City Officials present:  City Attorney K. Ellis Ritchie, Police Chief 
Steve Lemmings, Assistant Police Chief James Willyard, Fire Chief Tim Thompson, Assistant 
Fire Chief B.K. Young, Golf Director Dennis Bowman, Library Director Cari Rerat, Building 
Inspector/ Code Enforcement Officer Doug Moore. 
Others:  Donna Bowman 

2. PETITIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE.
(LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES) 

There were no petitions from the audience. 
3. MAYOR'S REPORT:

Mayor Tramel stated that Pryor Creek was featured Let's Move! Cities, Towns and Counties 
Newsletter. He also introduced the Lakota Group who is in Pryor Creek to update the 
Comprehensive Plan and will be hosting a “Community Speak Out” on Thursday, November 
19th, 2015 from 6:30 to 8:30 at the Graham Community Hall.  

a. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO
REQUEST THE MUNICIPAL UTILITY BOARD GENERAL MANAGER GARY
PRUETT TO SET THE FLASHING SCHOOL ZONE SIGNS ON SOUTH
ELLIOTT STREET TO ACTIVATE AND FLASH BETWEEN THE TIME OF
0745 HOURS (7:45 A.M.) THROUGH 1600 HOURS (4:00 P.M.) ON WEEKDAYS
WHILE SCHOOL IS IN SESSION.

Motion was made by White, second by Chitwood to approve to authorize the Mayor to request 
the Municipal Utility Board General Manager Gary Pruett to set the flashing school zone signs 
on South Elliott Street to activate and flash between the time of 0745 hours (7:45 a.m.) through 
1600 hours (4:00 p.m.) on weekdays while school is in session. Voting yes:  Willcutt, White, 
Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott. Voting no:  none. 

4. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:
a. SECOND AND FINAL READING, DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION

APPROVING AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE
SECTION 10-4-1 REGARDING DEFINITIONS PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION
OF DEFINITIONS OF "TRANSITIONAL LIVING FACILITY" AND
"HALFWAY HOUSE".

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by White to approve and waive the reading of Ordinance 
# 2015 – 17  amending Pryor Creek City Code Section 10-4-1 regarding definitions providing for 
inclusion of definitions of "Transitional Living Facility" and "Halfway House". Voting yes: 
White, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt. Voting no: none. 

b. SECOND AND FINAL READING, DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION
APPROVING AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE



Page 2 of 4 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOVEMBER 17TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

TITLE 10 ADDING NEW SECTION 10-13-10 REGARDING “TRANSITIONAL 
LIVING FACILITIES” AND “HALFWAY HOUSES”.  

Motion was made by White, second by Brittain to approve and waive the reading of Ordinance # 
2015 – 18 amending Pryor Creek City Code Title 10 adding new Section 10-13-10 regarding 
“Transitional Living Facilities” and “Halfway Houses”. Voting yes:  Thompson, Brittain, 
Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, White. Voting no:  none. 

c. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2015 (IBC) 
INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE PER TITLE 59 O.S. SECTION 1000.20 TO 
1000.29 OF OKLAHOMA STATE STATUTES. 

d. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING 2015 (IEBC) 
INTERNATIONAL EXISTING BUILDING CODE PER TITLE 59 O.S. SECTION 
1000.20 TO 1000.29 OF OKLAHOMA STATE STATUTES. 

e. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING 2015 (IFC) 
INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE PER TITLE 59 O.S. SECTION 1000.20 TO 
1000.29 OF OKLAHOMA STATE STATUTES. 

f. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING 2015 (IFGC) 
INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE PER TITLE 59 O.S. SECTION 1000.20 TO 
1000.29 OF OKLAHOMA STATE STATUTE. 

g. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING 2015 (IMC) 
INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE PER TITLE 59 O.S. SECTION 1000.20 
TO 1000.29 OF OKLAHOMA STATE STATUTE. 

h. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING 2015 (IPMC) 
INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE PER TITLE 59 O.S. 
SECTION 1000.20 TO 1000.29 OF OKLAHOMA STATE STATUTE. 

i. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING 2009 (IPSDC) 
INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE SEWAGE DISPOSAL CODE PER TITLE 59 O.S. 
SECTION 1000.20 TO 1000.29 OF OKLAHOMA STATE STATUTE. 

j. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING 2011 (IRC) 
INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE PER TITLE 59 O.S. SECTION 1000.20 
TO 1000.29 OF OKLAHOMA STATE STATUTE. 

k. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING 2015 (IPC) 
INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE PER TITLE 59 O.S. SECTION 1000.20 TO 
1000.29 OF OKLAHOMA STATE STATUTE.   

There was no action on items c-k. 

5. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON CONSENT AGENDA. 
(ITEMS DEEMED NON-CONTROVERSIAL AND ROUTINE IN NATURE TO BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION WITHOUT 

DISCUSSION. ANY COUNCIL MEMBER WISHING TO DISCUSS AN ITEM MAY REQUEST IT BE REMOVED AND PLACED 
ON THE REGULAR AGENDA.) 

a. Approve minutes of November 3rd, 2015 Council meeting. 
b. Approve payroll purchase orders through November 20th, 2015. 
c. Approve claims for purchase orders through November 17th, 2015. 

APPROVE PURCHASE ORDERS THROUGH NOVEMBER 17TH, 2015. 
FUNDS              PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER        TOTALS 

 GENERAL 1520151111 - 1520150128 $    120,344.51 
 STREET & DRAINAGE 910641B - 1520150977 10,760.28 
 GOLF 1520151082 - 1520151136 1,931.20 
 REAL PROPERTY ACQ. 910671B 3,600.00 
 RECREATION CENTER 1520151051 - 1520151135 8,267.38 
 E-911 CASH 1520151092 - 1520151090 1,394.42 
 DONATIONS 1520151095 - 1520151014 $       3,800.00 
   TOTAL                         $   150,097.79 
 

NEW BLANKET PURCHASE ORDERS 
 
 910725B JACKSON TRUCK REPAIR $     2,200.00 
 910726B CULLIGAN OF TULSA         600.00 
 910727B CULLIGAN OF TULSA 600.00 
 910728B ROBERTS AUTO CENTER $     5,000.00 
                       TOTAL $     8,400.00 
 

d. Acknowledge receipt of deficient purchase orders.  
There were no deficient purchase orders presented.  

e. Approve October Appropriation Requests. 
f. Approve an expenditure of $ 2,693.25 to Dolese Brothers Co. for concrete for the 

Pavilion at the Cemetery. 
g. Approve an expenditure of $3,050.50 to Ballmom Designs for tee shirts for 

children participating in the DARE program from funds raised by the DARE 
officer and deposited in the Donations -Drug Abuse (Account #96-965-5507). 



Page 3 of 4 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOVEMBER 17TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

h. Approve resignation of Kay Baldridge from MESTA Board effective 
immediately.  

i. Approve Mayor’s appointment of Harriett Dunham to MESTA Trustee Number 
10, term expiring 1/21/2019. 

j. Approve modification to the City of Pryor Creek Policy and Procedures Manual, 
Chapter 10 Vacations, Section 10-3, Eligibility Schedule as follows: 

VACATION ELIGIBILITY SCHEDULE 
YEARS OF ELIGIBLE SERVICE HRS CREDITED BIWEEKLY DAYS CREDITED EACH YEAR 

Years 0 - 1 1.54 hours 5 days 
Years 2 – 5 3.08 hours 10 Days 

Years 6 – 15 4.62 hours 15 days 
Years 16 and over 4.62 hours 15 days 

(Plus one day per year to                                 
Maximum of 20 days) 

  

k. Approve City of Pryor Creek schedule for 2016 regular Council meetings. 
l. Approve City of Pryor Creek 2016 schedule for regular Budget / Personnel 

Committee meetings. 
m. Approve City of Pryor Creek 2016 schedule for regular Street / Maintenance 

Garage Committee meetings.   
n. Approve City of Pryor Creek 2016 schedule for regular Park Board meetings.  
o. Approve City of Pryor Creek 2016 schedule for regular Planning and Zoning 

Board of Adjustment / Multi-Hazard Mitigation Committee meetings. 
p. Approve City of Pryor Creek 2016 schedule for Planning and Zoning 

Commission meetings. 
q. Approve City of Pryor Creek 2016 schedule for Pryor Creek Recreation Center 

Board meetings. 
r. Approve City of Pryor Creek 2016 schedule for Flood Plain Board meetings. 
s. Approve City of Pryor Creek 2016 schedule for Library Board meetings. 
t. Approve City of Pryor Creek 2016 schedule for Municipal Utility Board 

meetings. 

Motion was made by Brittain, second by Thompson to approve items a-t (items i and j were 
tabled by the Mayor) less items f and g. Voting yes:  Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, 
Willcutt, White, Thompson. Voting no:  none. 

f. APPROVE AN EXPENDITURE OF $ 2,693.25 TO DOLESE BROTHERS CO. 
FOR CONCRETE FOR THE PAVILION AT THE CEMETERY. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by White to approve an expenditure of $ 2,693.25 to 
Dolese Brothers Co. for concrete for the Pavilion at the Cemetery. Voting yes:  Rosamond, 
Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, White, Thompson, Brittain. Voting no:  none. 
 

g. APPROVE AN EXPENDITURE OF $3,050.50 TO BALLMOM DESIGNS FOR 
TEE SHIRTS FOR CHILDREN PARTICIPATING IN THE DARE PROGRAM 
FROM FUNDS RAISED BY THE DARE OFFICER AND DEPOSITED IN THE 
DONATIONS -DRUG ABUSE (ACCOUNT #96-965-5507). 

Motion was made by Brittain, second by Thompson to approve an expenditure of $3,050.50 to 
Ballmom Designs for tee shirts for children participating in the DARE program from funds 
raised by the DARE officer and deposited in the Donations -Drug Abuse (Account #96-965-
5507). Voting yes:  Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, White, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond. 
Voting no:  none. 
 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
a. BUDGET / PERSONNEL (ROSAMOND) 
Rosamond reported for the Budget / Personnel Committee and stated they had met this month 
and will meet again next month. 
b. ORDINANCE / INSURANCE (CHITWOOD) 
Chitwood reported for the Ordinance / Insurance Committee and stated the November meeting 
would be rescheduled and they will try to meet in early December. 
c. STREET / MAINTENANCE GARAGE (WILLCUTT)  
Willcutt reported for the Street / Maintenance Garage Committee and stated they will meet next 
Tuesday at 6:00 p.m. 

7. UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS. 
(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 

 

There was no unforeseeable business presented. 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOVEMBER 17TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

8. ADJOURN. 
Motion was made by Stott, second by White to adjourn. Voting yes:  Rains, Stott, Willcutt, 
White, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood. Voting no:  none.  
 
 

PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Tramel called the Pryor Public Works Authority meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.  
 

2. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 3RD, 
2015 MEETING. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Willcutt to approve minutes of November 3rd, 2015 
meeting. Voting yes: Stott, Willcutt, White, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains. 
Voting no:  none. 
 

3. UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS. 
(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORSEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 

There was no unforeseeable business presented. 
 

4. ADJOURN. 
Motion was made by Stott, second by White to adjourn from the Pryor Public Works Authority 
meeting. Voting yes: Willcutt, White, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott. 
Voting no:  none. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES APPROVED BY MAYOR / P.P.W.A CHAIRMAN JIMMY TRAMEL 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

MINUTES WRITTEN BY CITY CLERK EVA SMITH  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 



 

 

 A RESOLUTION  OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK AFFIRMING THE CITY OF 
PRYOR CREEK SUPPORTS FOR FAVORABLE CONSIDERATION TO BE GIVEN FOR AN 
AFFORADABLE HOUSING TAX CREDIT AWARD FOR THE DEVELOPMENT FO  
SEVENTY TWO (72) UNIT HOUSING DEVELPPMENT BY NHSOKC CIESTELLA 
HOMOMES OF PRYOR CREEK LLC 
 
 WHEREAS, NHSOKC CIESTELLA HOMES OF PRYOR LLC, is proposing to construct 
an approximate 72 unit housing Development to be located in the city limits of Pryor Creek 
approximately seven hundred feet west of the intersection of S Elliott St and SE 22nd Street; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY OF PRYOR CREEK supports economic Development and 
promotes affordable housing for the benefit of the citizens of Pryor Creek, 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF Pryor Creek, that 
the City Council supports favorable consideration to be given for a tax credit award for this 
Development. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, it is noted that the proposed Development is consistent 
with Pryor Creek’s affordable housing strategies and comprehensive plan. 
 
  
APPROVED AND PASSED this     day of    , 20   . 
 













































































ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - _______ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK ADOPTING THE 2006 2015 EDITION OF 
THE INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, REGULATING AND GOVERNING THE 
CONDITIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF ALL PROPERTY, BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES; 
BY PROVIDING THE STANDARDS FOR SUPPLIED UTILITIES AND FACILITIES AND 
OTHER PHYSICAL THINGS AND CONDITIONS ESSENTIAL TO ENSURE THAT 
STRUCTURES ARE SAFE, SANITARY AND FIT FOR OCCUPATION AND USE AND THE 
DEMOLITION OF SUCH STRUCTURES IN THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK; PROVIDING FOR 
THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION OF FEES THEREFOR; AND REPEALING 
ALL OTHER ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF THE ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
THEREWITH. 

THE CITY OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1:   That a certain document, four (4) copies of which are on file, one (1) each, in the 
offices of the city clerk, fire chief, building inspector, and public library of the city of Pryor Creek, 
being marked and designated as the International Building Code, 2006 2015 edition, as published by 
the International Code Council (ICC), as amended and revised by the Oklahoma Uniform Building 
Code Commission (OUBCC), be and is hereby adopted as the Building Code of the City of Pryor 
Creek, in the State of Oklahoma for regulating and governing the conditions and maintenance of all 
property, buildings and structures; by providing the standards for supplied utilities and facilities and 
other physical things and conditions essential to ensure that structures are safe, sanitary and fit for 
occupation and use; and the condemnation of buildings and structures unfit for human occupancy 
and use and the demolition of such structures as herein provided; providing for the issuance of 
permits and collection of fees therefor; and each and all of the regulations, provisions, penalties, 
conditions and terms of said Building Code on file in the office of the City of Pryor are hereby 
referred to, adopted, and made a part hereof, as if fully set out in this ordinance, with the additions, 
insertions, deletions and changes, if any, prescribed in Section 2 of this ordinance. 

SECTION 2:  The following sections are hereby revised: 

Section 101.1: City of Pryor Creek. 

Section 1612.3: City of Pryor Creek. 

Section 1612.3: September 16, 2011. 

Section 3412.2: April 1, 2015. 

SECTION 3:  That Ordinance No. 2006-9, 9-19-2006 and all ordinances or parts of ordinances 
in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4:  That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for 
any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phase thereof, irrespective of 
the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be 
declared unconstitutional. 

SECTION 5:  That nothing in this ordinance or in the Building Code hereby adopted shall be 
construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, or 
liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or 
ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this ordinance; nor shall any just or legal 
right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 

SECTION 6.  That the City Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to cause this ordinance to be 
published one time in a newspaper in general circulation. 

SECTION 7.  That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders 
and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect 30 
days from and after the date of its final passage and adoption. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, 
OKLAHOMA, ON THIS ____ DAY OF ______, 2015. 



 

 

_____________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 

 

Approved for Form and Legality: 

 

 

____________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

 

 

Attest by: 

_____________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK ADOPTING THE 2006 2015 EDITION OF 
THE INTERNATIONAL EXISTING BUILDING CODE, REGULATING AND GOVERNING THE 
REPAIR, ALTERATION, CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY, ADDITION AND RELOCATION OF 
EXISTING BUILDINGS, INCLUDING HISTORIC BUILDINGS, IN THE CITY OF PRYOR 
CREEK; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION OF FEES 
THEREFOR. 
 
THE CITY OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:   That a certain document, four (4) copies of which are on file, one (1) each, in the 
offices of the city clerk, fire chief, building inspector, and public library of the city of Pryor Creek, 
being marked and designated as the International Existing Building Code, 2006 2015 edition, as 
published by the International Code Council (ICC), be and is hereby adopted as the Existing Building 
Code of the City of Pryor Creek, in the State of Oklahoma for regulating and governing the repair, 
alteration, change of occupancy, addition and relocation of existing buildings, including historic 
buildings, as herein provided; providing for the issuance of permits and collection of fees therefor; 
and each and all of the regulations, provisions, penalties, conditions and terms of said Existing 
Building Code on file in the office of the City of Pryor Creek are hereby referred to, adopted, and 
made a part hereof, as if fully set out in this ordinance, with the additions, insertions, deletions and 
changes, if any, prescribed in Section 2 of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2:  The following sections are hereby revised: 

 
Section 101.1. Insert: City of Pryor Creek. 

 
Section 1301.2. Insert: April 1, 2015 

 
SECTION 3:  That Ordinance No. 2006-7 and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4:  That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for 
any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phase thereof, irrespective of 
the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be 
declared unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 5:  That nothing in this ordinance or in the In Existing Building Code hereby adopted 
shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights 
acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any 
act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this ordinance; nor shall any just or 
legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 6:  That the City Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to cause this ordinance to be 
published one time in a newspaper in general circulation. 
 
SECTION 7:  That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders 
and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect 30 
days from and after the date of its final passage and adoption. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, 
OKLAHOMA, ON THIS ____ DAY OF ______, 2015. 
 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 

 

Approved for Form and Legality: 

 



 

____________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

 

 

Attest by: 

_____________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK ADOPTING THE 2006 2015 EDITION OF 
THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE, REGULATING AND GOVERNING THE 
SAFEGUARDING OF LIFE AND PROPERTY FROM FIRE AND EXPLOSION HAZARDS 
ARISING FROM THE STORAGE, HANDLEING AND USE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES, 
MATERIALS AND DEVICES, AND FORM CONDITIONS HAZARDOUS TO LIFE OR 
PROERTY IN THE OCCUPANCY OF BUILDINGS AND PREMISES IN THE CITY OF PRYOR 
CREEK; PROVIDING FOR ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION OF FEES 
THEREFORE; AND REPEALING ALL OTHER ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF THE 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 
 
THE CITY OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:   That a certain document, four (4) copies of which are on file, one (1) each, in the 
offices of the city clerk, fire chief, building inspector, and public library of the city of Pryor Creek, 
being marked and designated as the International Fire Code, 2006 2015 edition, including Appendix 
Chapters D, E, F, G, H, I, and J (see International Fire Code Section 101.2.1, 2006 2015 edition), as 
published by the International Code Council (ICC), as amended and revised by the Oklahoma 
Uniform Building Code Commission (OUBCC), be and is hereby adopted as the Fire Code of the 
City of Pryor Creek, in the State of Oklahoma for regulating and governing the safeguarding of life 
and property from fire explosion hazards arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous 
substances, materials and devices, and from conditions hazardous to life or property in the 
occupancy of buildings and premises as herein provided; providing for the issuance of permits and 
collection of fees therefor; and each and all of the regulations, provisions, penalties, conditions and 
terms of said Fire Code on file in the office of the City of Pryor Creek are hereby referred to, 
adopted, and made a part hereof, as if fully set out in this ordinance, with the additions, insertions, 
deletions and changes, if any, prescribed in Section 2 of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2:  The following sections are hereby revised: 

 
Section 101.1.: City of Pryor Creek. 
 
Table 109.3.: See Chapter 4, General Penalty. 
 
Section 111.4.: See Appendix A, Schedule of Fees and Charges. 

 
SECTION 3:  That the geographic limits referred to in certain sections of the 2006 2015 
International Fire Code are hereby established as follows: 
 

Section 3404.2.9.6.1 (geographic limits in which the storage of Class I and Class II 
liquids in above-ground tanks outside of buildings is prohibited): Contact Building 
Inspector. 
  
Section 3406.2.4.4 (geographic limits in which the storage of Class I and Class II liquids 
in above-ground tanks is prohibited): Contact Building Inspector. 
 
Section 3506.2 (geographic limits in which the storage of flammable cryogenic fluids in 
stationary containers is prohibited): Contact Building Inspector 
 
Section 3804.2 (geographic limits in which the storage of liquefied petroleum gas is 
restricted for the protection of heavily populated or congested areas): Contact Building 
Inspector. 
 

SECTION 4:  That Ordinance No. 2006-10 of the City of Pryor Creek and all ordinances or parts 
of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 5:  That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for 
any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phase thereof, irrespective of 
the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be 
declared unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 6:  That nothing in this ordinance or in the Residential Code hereby adopted shall be 
construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, or 
liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or 



ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this ordinance; nor shall any just or legal 
right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 7:  That the City Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to cause this ordinance to be 
published one time in a newspaper in general circulation. 
 
SECTION 8:  That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders 
and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect 30 
days from and after the date of its final passage and adoption. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, 
OKLAHOMA, ON THIS ____ DAY OF ______, 2015. 
 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 

 

Approved for Form and Legality: 

 

 

____________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

 

 

Attest by: 

_____________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK ADOPTING THE 2006 2015 EDITION OF 
THE INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE, REGULATING AND GOVERNING FUEL GAS 
SYSTEMS AND GAS-FIRED APPLIANCES IN THE IN THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK; 
PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION OF FEES THEREFOR; 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2006-11 OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK AND ALL PARTS 
OF THE ORDINANCE IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 
 
THE CITY OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:   That a certain document, four (4) copies of which are on file, one (1) each, in the 
offices of the city clerk, fire chief, building inspector, and public library of the city of Pryor Creek, 
being marked and designated as the International Fuel Gas Code, 2006 2015 edition, as published 
by the International Code Council (ICC), as amended and revised by the Oklahoma Uniform Building 
Code Commission (OUBCC), be and is hereby adopted as the Fuel Gas Code of the City of Pryor 
Creek, in the State of Oklahoma for regulating and governing fuel gas systems and gas-fired 
appliances herein provided; providing for the issuance of permits and collection of fees therefor; and 
each and all of the regulations, provisions, penalties, conditions and terms of said Fuel Gas Code on 
file in the office of the City of Pryor Creek are hereby referred to, adopted, and made a part hereof, 
as if fully set out in this ordinance, with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes, if any, 
prescribed in Section 2 of this ordinance. 
 
 
SECTION 2:  The following sections are hereby revised: 

 
Section 101.1. Insert: City of Pryor Creek. 

 
Section 106.6.2. Insert: See Appendix A, Schedule of Fees and Charges. 
 
Section 106.6.3. Insert: fifty percent (50%); fifty percent (50%). 
 
Section 108.4. Insert: See Chapter 4, General Penalty. 
 
Section 108.5. Insert: See Appendix A, Schedule of Fees and Charges. 
 
Section 109 through 109.7. Deleted and Insert Replacement: Sections 109 through 109.7 of 
this code are intentionally deleted from the International Mechanical Code, 2006 2015 
edition.  Appeals from a decision of the code official shall be governed by title 10 chapter 2 of 
the Pryor Creek City Code. 
 

 
SECTION 3:  That Ordinance No. 2006-11 of the City of Pryor Creek and all ordinances or parts 
of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4:  That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for 
any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phase thereof, irrespective of 
the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be 
declared unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 5:  That nothing in this ordinance or in the Fuel Gas Code hereby adopted shall be 
construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, or 
liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or 
ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this ordinance; nor shall any just or legal 
right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 6.  That the City Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to cause this ordinance to be 
published one time in a newspaper in general circulation. 
 
SECTION 7.  That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders 
and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect 30 
days from and after the date of its final passage and adoption. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, 
OKLAHOMA, ON THIS ____ DAY OF ______, 2015. 
 



 

 

_____________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 

 

Approved for Form and Legality: 

 

 

____________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

 

 

Attest by: 

_____________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK ADOPTING THE 2006 2015 EDITION OF 
THE INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE, REGULATING AND GOVERNING THE 
DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, QUALITY OF MATERIALS, ERECTION, INSTALLATION, 
ALTERATION, REPAIR, LOCATION, RELOCATION, REPLACEMENT, ADDITION TO, USE 
OR MAINTENANCE OF MECHANICAL SYSTEMS IN THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK; 
PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION OF FEES THEREFOR; 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2006-12 OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK AND ALL PARTS 
OF THE ORDINANCE IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 
 
THE CITY OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:   That a certain document, four (4) copies of which are on file, one (1) each, in the 
offices of the city clerk, fire chief, building inspector, and public library of the city of Pryor Creek, 
being marked and designated as the International Mechanical Code, 2006 2015 edition, as 
published by the International Code Council (ICC), as amended and revised by the Oklahoma 
Uniform Building Code Commission (OUBCC), be and is hereby adopted as the Mechanical Code of 
the City of Pryor Creek, in the State of Oklahoma for regulating and governing the design, 
construction, quality of material, erection, installation, alterations, repair, location, relocation, 
replacement, addition to, use or maintenance of plumbing systems as herein provided; providing for 
issuance of permits and collection of fees therefor; and each and all of the regulations, provisions, 
penalties, conditions and terms of said Mechanical Code on file in the office of the City of Pryor 
Creek are hereby referred to, adopted, and made a part hereof, as if fully set out in this ordinance, 
with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes, if any, prescribed in Section 2 of this 
ordinance. 
 
 
SECTION 2:  The following sections are hereby revised: 

 
Section 101.1. Insert: City of Pryor Creek. 
 
Section 106.5.2. Insert: See Appendix A, Schedule of Fees and Charges. 
 
Section 106.5.3. Insert: fifty percent (50%); fifty percent (50%). 
 
Section 108.4. Insert: See Chapter 4, General Penalty. 
 
Section 108.5. Insert: See Appendix A, Schedule of Fees and Charges. 
 
Section 109 through 109.7. Deleted and Insert Replacement: Sections 109 
through 109.7 of this code are intentionally deleted from the International 
Mechanical Code, 2006 2015 edition.  Appeals from a decision of the code 
official shall be governed by title 10 chapter 2 of the Pryor Creek City Code. 
 

 
SECTION 3:  That Ordinance No. 2006-12 of the City of Pryor Creek and all ordinances or parts 
of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4:  That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for 
any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phase thereof, irrespective of 
the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be 
declared unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 5:  That nothing in this ordinance or in the Mechanical Code hereby adopted shall be 
construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, or 
liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or 
ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this ordinance; nor shall any just or legal 
right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 6.  That the City Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to cause this ordinance to be 
published one time in a newspaper in general circulation. 
 
SECTION 7.  That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders 
and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect 30 
days from and after the date of its final passage and adoption. 



 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, 
OKLAHOMA, ON THIS ____ DAY OF ______, 2015. 
 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 

 

Approved for Form and Legality: 

 

 

____________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

 

 

Attest by: 

_____________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK ADOPTING THE 2006 2009 EDITION OF 
THE INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE, REGULATING AND 
GOVERNING THE CONDITIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF ALL PROPERTY, BUILDINGS 
AND STURCTURES; BY PROVIDING THE STANDARDS FOR SUPPLIED UTILITIES AND 
FACILITIES AND OTHER PHYSICAL THINGS AND CONDITIOINS ESSENTIAL TO ENSURE 
THAT STRUCTURES ARE SAFE, SANITARTY AND FIT FOR OCCUPATION AND USE; 
AND THE CONDEMNATION OF BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES UNFIT FOR HUMAN 
OCCUPANCY AND USE, AND THE DEMOLITION OF SUCH EXISTING STRUCTUTRES IN 
THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND 
COLLECTION OF FEES THEREFOR; AND REPEALING ALL OTHER ORDINANCES AND 
PARTS OF THE ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 
 
THE CITY OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:   That a certain document, four (4) copies of which are on file, one (1) each, in the 
offices of the city clerk, fire chief, building inspector, and public library of the city of Pryor Creek, 
being marked and designated as the International Property Maintenance Code, 2006 2009 edition, 
as published by the International Code Council (ICC), be and is hereby adopted as the Property 
Maintenance Code of the City of Pryor Creek, in the State of Oklahoma for regulating and governing 
the conditions and maintenance of all property, buildings and structures; by providing the standards 
for supplied utilities and facilities and other physical things and conditions essential to ensure that 
structures unfit for human occupancy and use; and the demolition of such existing structures as 
herein provided; providing for the issuance of permits and collection of fees therefore; and each and 
all of the regulations, provisions, penalties, conditions and terms of said Property Maintenance Code 
on file in the office of the City of Pryor Creek are hereby referred to, adopted, and made a part 
hereof, as if fully set out in this ordinance, with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes, if 
any, prescribed in Section 2 of this ordinance.  
 
SECTION 2:  The following sections are hereby revised: 

 
Section 101.1. Insert: City of Pryor Creek. 

 
Section 103.5. Insert: See Appendix A, Schedule of Fees and Charges. 
 
Section 112.4. Insert: two five hundred dollar ($500.00), five hundred dollars ($500.00), plus 
a one hundred fifty dollar ($150.00) administrative fee for all public nuisance abatement. 
 
Section 302.4. Insert: Twelve inches (12”) 
 
Section 304.14.: January 1; December 31. 
 
Section 602.3. Insert: September 1; June 1. 
 
Section 602.4. Insert: September 1; June 1. 
 

SECTION 3:  That Ordinance No. 2006-8 and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4:  That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for 
any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phase thereof, irrespective of 
the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be 
declared unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 5:  That nothing in this ordinance or in the Existing Building Code hereby adopted 
shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights 
acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any 
act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this ordinance; nor shall any just or 
legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 6:  That the City Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to cause this ordinance to be 
published one time in a newspaper in general circulation. 
 



SECTION 7:  That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders 
and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect 30 
days from and after the date of its final passage and adoption. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, 
OKLAHOMA, ON THIS ____ DAY OF ______, 2015. 
 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 

 

Approved for Form and Legality: 

 

 

____________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

 

 

Attest by: 

_____________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK ADOPTING THE 2006 2009 EDITION OF 
THE INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE SEWAGE DISPOSAL CODE, REGULATING AND 
GOVERNING THE DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, QUALITY OF MATERIALS, ERECTION, 
INSTALLATION, ALTERATION, REPAIR, LOCATION, RELOCATION, REPLACEMENT, 
ADDITION TO, USE OR MAINTENANCE OF INDIVIDUAL SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS 
IN THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND 
COLLECTION OF FEES THEREFOR; REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2004-8 OF THE CITY 
OF PRYOR CREEK AND ALL OTHER ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF THE ORDINANCES 
IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 
 
THE CITY OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:   That a certain document, four (4) copies of which are on file, one (1) each, in the offices 
of the city clerk, fire chief, building inspector, and public library of the city of Pryor Creek, being marked 
and designated as the International Private Sewage Disposal Code, 2006 2009 edition, , as published 
by the International Code Council (ICC), as amended and revised by the Oklahoma Uniform Building 
Code Commission (OUBCC), is hereby adopted as the Private Sewage Disposal Code of the City of 
Pryor Creek, in the State of Oklahoma regulating and governing the design, construction, quality of 
material, erection, installation, alterations, repair, location, relocation, replacement, addition to, use or 
maintenance of individual sewage disposal systems as herein provided; providing for issuance of 
permits and collection of fees therefor; and each and all of the regulations, provisions, penalties, 
conditions and terms of said Private Sewage Disposal Code on file in the office of the City of Pryor 
Creek are hereby referred to, adopted, and made a part hereof, as if fully set out in this ordinance, 
with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes, if any, prescribed in Section 2 of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2:  The following sections are hereby revised: 

 
Section 101.1. Insert: City of Pryor Creek. 
 
Section 106.4.2. Insert: See Appendix A, Schedule of Fees and Charges. 
 
Section 106.4.3. Insert: fifty (50), fifty (50). 
 
Section 108.4. Insert: See Chapter 4, General Penalty. 
 
Section108.5. Insert: See Appendix A, Schedule of Fees and Charges. 
 
Section 109 through 109.7. Deleted and Insert Replacement: Sections 109 
through 109.7 of this code are intentionally deleted from the International 
Private Sewage Disposal Code, 2006 2009 edition.  Appeals from a decision 
of the code official shall be governed by title 10 chapter 2 of the Pryor Creek 
City Code. 

 
SECTION 3:  That Ordinance No. 2006-9 of the City of Pryor Creek and repealing all other 
ordinances and parts of the ordinance in conflict therewith.  
 
SECTION 4:  That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for 
any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this 
ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any 
one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be declared unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 5:  That nothing in this ordinance or in the Plumbing Code hereby adopted shall be 
construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, or liability 
incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or ordinance hereby 
repealed as cited in Section 3 of this ordinance; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any 
character be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 6.  That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders and 
matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect 30 days 
from and after the date of its final passage and adoption. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, 
OKLAHOMA, ON THIS ____ DAY OF ______, 2015. 
 

 



 

_____________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 

 

Approved for Form and Legality: 

 

 

____________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

 

 

Attest by: 

_____________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK ADOPTING THE  2009 EDITION OF THE 
INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE, REGULATING AND GOVERNING THE 
CONSTRUCTION, ALTERATION, MOVEMENT, ENLARGEMENT, REPLACEMENT, REPAIR, 
EQUIPMENT, LOCATION, REMOVAL AND DEMOLITION OF DETACHED ONE- AND TWO- 
FAMILY DWELLINGS AND MULTIPLE SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS (TOWNHOUSES) 
NOT MORE THAN THREE STORIES IN HEIGHT WITH SEPARATE MEANS OF EGRESS IN 
THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND 
COLLECTION OF FEES THEREFOR; REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2006-6 OF THE CITY 
OF PRYOR CREEK AND ALL OTHER ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF THE ORDIANCES IN 
CONFLICT THEREWITH. 
 
THE CITY OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:   That a certain document, four (4) copies of which are on file, one (1) each, in the 
offices of the city clerk, fire chief, building inspector, and public library of the city of Pryor Creek, 
being marked and designated as the International Residential Code, 2006 2009 edition, as published 
by the International Code Council (ICC), as amended and revised by the Oklahoma Uniform Building 
Code Commission (OUBCC), be and is hereby adopted as the Residential Code of the City of Pryor 
Creek, in the State of Oklahoma for regulating and governing the construction,  alteration, 
movement, enlargement, replacement, repair, equipment, location, removal and demolition of 
detached one- and two- dwellings and multiple single family dwellings (townhouse) not more than 
three stories in height with separate means of egress as herein provided; providing for the issuance 
of permits and collection of fees therefor; and each and all of the regulations, provisions, penalties, 
conditions and terms of said Residential Code on file in the office of the City of Pryor Creek are 
hereby referred to, adopted, and made a part hereof, as if fully set out in this ordinance, with the 
additions, insertions, deletions and changes, if any, prescribed in Section 2 of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2:  The following sections are hereby revised: 

 
Section R101.1. Insert: City of Pryor Creek. 
 
Table R301.2 (1) Insert: Design criteria. 
 
Section P2603.6.1 Insert: Six inches (6”); twelve inches (12”). 

 
SECTION 3:  That Ordinance No. 2006-6 of the City of Pryor Creek and all ordinances or parts 
of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4:  That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for 
any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phase thereof, irrespective of 
the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be 
declared unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 5:  That nothing in this ordinance or in the Residential Code hereby adopted shall be 
construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, or 
liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or 
ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this ordinance; nor shall any just or legal 
right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 6.  That the City Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to cause this ordinance to be 
published one time in a newspaper in general circulation. 
 
SECTION 7.  That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders 
and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect 30 
days from and after the date of its final passage and adoption. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, 
OKLAHOMA, ON THIS ____ DAY OF ______, 2015. 
 

 

 

_____________________________ 



Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 

 

Approved for Form and Legality: 

 

 

____________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

 

 

Attest by: 

_____________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK ADOPTING THE 2006 2015 EDITION OF 
THE INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, REGULATING AND GOVERNING THE DESIGN, 
CONSTRUCTION, QUALITY OF MATERIALS, ERECTION, INSTALLATION, ALTERATION, 
REPAIR, LOCATION, RELOCATION, REPLACEMENT, ADDITION TO, USE OR 
MAINTENANCE OF PLUMBING SYSTEM IN THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK; PROVIDING 
FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION OF FEES THEREFOR; REPEALING 
ORDINANCE NO. 2006-9 OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK AND ALL OTHER 
ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF THE ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 
 
THE CITY OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:   That a certain document, four (4) copies of which are on file, one (1) each, in the offices 
of the city clerk, fire chief, building inspector, and public library of the city of Pryor Creek, being marked 
and designated as the International Plumbing Code, 2006 2015 edition, as published by the 
International Code Council (ICC), as amended and revised by the Oklahoma Uniform Building Code 
Commission (OUBCC),  is hereby adopted as the Plumbing Code of the City of Pryor Creek, in the 
State of Oklahoma regulating and governing the design, construction, quality of material, erection, 
installation, alterations, repair, location, relocation, replacement, addition to, use or maintenance of 
plumbing systems as herein provided; providing for issuance of permits and collection of fees therefor; 
and each and all of the regulations, provisions, penalties, conditions and terms of said Plumbing Code 
on file in the office of the City of Pryor Creek are hereby referred to, adopted, and made a part hereof, 
as if fully set out in this ordinance, with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes, if any, 
prescribed in Section 2 of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 2:  The following sections are hereby revised: 

 
Section 101.1. Insert: City of Pryor Creek. 
 
Section 106.6.2. Insert: See Appendix A, Schedule of Fees and Charges. 
 
Section 106.6.3. Insert: fifty (50), fifty (50). 
 
Section 108.4. Insert: See Chapter 4, General Penalty. 
 
Section108.5. Insert: See Appendix A, Schedule of Fees and Charges. 
 
Section 109 through 109.7. Deleted and Insert Replacement: Sections 109 
through 109.7 of this code are intentionally deleted from the International 
Plumbing Code, 2006 2015 edition.  Appeals from a decision of the code 
official shall be governed by title 10 chapter 2 of the Pryor Creek City Code. 
 
Section 305.6.1. Insert: Six inches (6”); twelve inches (12”). 
 
Section 904.1. Insert: Twelve inches (12”) 

 
SECTION 3:  That Ordinance No. 2006-9 of the City of Pryor Creek and repealing all other 
ordinances and parts of the ordinance in conflict therewith.  
 
SECTION 4:  That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for 
any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this 
ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any 
one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be declared unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 5:  That nothing in this ordinance or in the Plumbing Code hereby adopted shall be 
construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, or liability 
incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or ordinance hereby 
repealed as cited in Section 3 of this ordinance; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any 
character be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 6.  That this ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders and 
matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect 30 days 
from and after the date of its final passage and adoption. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, 
OKLAHOMA, ON THIS ____ DAY OF ______, 2015. 



 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

 

 

Approved for Form and Legality: 

 

 

____________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

 

 

Attest by: 

_____________________________ 
Eva Smith, City Clerk 



Dba: 
 

3840 S. 103RD E. AVENUE, SUITE 227 ▪ TULSA, OK 74145 ▪ 918.664.5500 ▪ 866.398.6481 FAX ▪ WWW.MEHLBURGERBRAWLEY.COM 
engineering the future ▪ civil engineering ▪ environmental ▪ transportation ▪ bridge ▪ survey ▪ construction management ▪ design-build 

November 20, 2015 

 
City of Pryor Creek 
12 North Rowe Street 
Pryor, OK 74362 
 
RE:   Whitaker Park Spillway Repair – November 19, 2015 Bid Opening 
 Letter of Recommendation 
 
Dear Mayor & Council,  
 
The Whitaker Park Spillway Repair project was bid at 2:00 p.m., on November 19, 2015 in the City 
Hall, Council Chambers, 12 North Rowe Street, Pryor Creek, OK 74362.  A certified bid tabulation 
for the referenced project is enclosed with this letter.  Four (4) contractors had received bid 
specifications for this project and Two (2) elected to submit a bid.  Jaybelle Construction bid 
$71,000.00 and Cook Consulting bid $74,400.00.  
 
We have contacted several of the references identified in the bid packets and believe Jaybelle 
Construction has the knowledge, experience and understanding of the project to complete this 
project to the satisfaction of the City of Pryor.  
 
We recommend that the City of Pryor award the contract to Jaybelle Construction, LLC of Rose, OK.  
with a total base bid of $71,000.00. 
 
Enclosed please find two (2) copies of the Notice of Award. Please review this and if you are in 
agreement with our recommendation, please establish this as an agenda item for your next meeting.  
Please sign two (2) copies and return one to Infrastructure Solutions Group, LLC for further 
processing.   
 
If you have any questions concerning this project, please do not hesitate to contact us at            
(918) 664-5500.   
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Steve Powell, P.E. 
Project Manager 
 
Project # PRY 15-03 


























































































































